ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 17, 2010
8:04 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Donal d O son

Senator Gary Stevens

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 213
"An Act providing for funding for school |unch and breakfast.'

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 213
SHORT TITLE: FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOSKI

01/ 19/ 10 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 10

01/ 19/ 10 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (S) EDC, FIN

02/ 17/ 10 (S) EDC AT 8: 00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR W EL ECHOWEKI

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 213.

GEORGE ASCOTT, staff to Senator W el echowski
Al aska State Legislature

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 17, 2010



Juneau, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 213.

EDDY JEANS, Director

Di vi sion of School Finance

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions about SB 213.

AMY ROUSE, Director

Division of Nutrition Services

Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District
Menmber, Al aska School Nutrition Association
Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

M CHAEL SOBOCI NSKI, Psychol ogi st
Board Menber, Food Bank of Al aska
Eagle River, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

BRENT ROCK, Director

Student Nutrition

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

SUSANNAH MORGAN, Executive Director
Food Bank of Al aska

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

PENNY VADLA, Board Menber

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District
Sol dot na, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

DEAN HAMBURG, Director

School Meal Prograns

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District (KPBSD)
Sol dot na, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

EDDI E EZELLE, Executive Director

Food Pantry of Wasilla

Wasi |l la, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- February 17, 2010



ALEX ANNA SALMON, Presi dent

Acting Adm ni strator

| giugig Village Counci

l giugig, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

JORDI S CLARK, School Nurse

Anchorage School District

Board Secretary, Food Bank of Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

J. PATRI CK LUBY, Advocacy Director
AARP, Al aska State Ofice

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

HEATHER HARRI S, BHS, Program Manager

Al aska Yout h and Parent Foundation (AYPF)
President, Al aska Food Coalition

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported SB 213.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:04: 00 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS called the Senate Education Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:04 a.m Present at the call to order were
Senators Stevens, Huggins, Davis, Myer and Thonas.

SB 213- FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS

8:04: 35 AM
CO- CHAlI R THOVAS announced consi derati on of SB 213.

CO- CHAIR MEYER noved to adopt the proposed conmttee substitute
(CS) to SB 213, |abeled 26-LS1301\E, as the working docunment of
the commttee. There being no objection, version E was before
the conmittee.

8: 05: 47 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI thanked the Alaska Food Coalition, the
Al aska School Nutrition Association, and the Food Bank of Al aska
for asking him to sponsor this legislation and working closely
with himon it. He said this bill will provide a state match for

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 17, 2010



schools participating in the federal free and reduced-price
school breakfast and lunch prograns in order to encourage nore
schools to provide nutritious neals for under-privileged
children and allow schools that already do so to inprove their
progranms. Under CSSB 213, he said, the state wll provide a
match of $.35 for every free and reduced-price breakfast and
$.15 for every free and reduced-price lunch the federal program
funds. He noted that Alaska is one of the few states that does
not provide sonme sort of state contribution.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI continued to say nost school districts wll
receive sonme additional assistance through a funding formula
based on the applicable school district cost factor for each
district. Numerous studies have docunented the fact that
elimnating hunger in <children inproves school performnce,
i ncreases school attendance, decreases school violence, and
helps to conbat obesity. Dealing with these problens now, he
said, will help prevent problens that will prove to be much nore
costly to society in the future.

8:08: 03 AM
SENATOR OLSON j oi ned the neeting.

8:08: 16 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked what the $.25 [$.35] and the $.15 will
buy.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said it wll be contributed to the schools
to enable schools that currently provide neals to increase the
nunber of neals they provide or increase the nunber of students
they serve, and wll enable certain districts that don't
currently provide neals to get federal funds for a neals
program

SENATOR HUGE NS asked Senator Welechowski if this is a federa
mat ch.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI turned the question over to his staffer,
CGeorge Ascott.

CGECRCE ASCOIT, staff to Senator Wel echowski, explained that the
federal governnment reinburses school districts that provide free
or reduced-price neals, and the state will sinply match any
rei nbursenent requests that are submtted to the federa
gover nnent .

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 17, 2010



SENATOR HUGA NS asked if he is correct that this wll just
subsi di ze the current prograns.

MR. ASCOIT said yes, the school districts will decide how to
spend t he noney.

8:10: 00 AM

CO CHAI R MEYER conment ed that Senator Wel echowski told him sone
districts are actually using noney that was intended to go to
the classroons to pay for school neals. He asked the sponsor to
clarify how the state matching funds wll be used.

8:10:41 AM
MR. ASCOIT said he believes all school districts make their own
decisions as to how they will supplenent the food prograns, but

all of the districts that have food prograns do supplenent them
in some way.

8:11: 26 AM
SENATOR DAVI S opined that what the sponsor is really trying to
do with this bill is to make sure the districts that provide

breakfast and |lunch don't have to dip into other funds to do it.
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI confirnmed that is correct.

8:12: 02 AM

SENATOR OLSON asked if the bill has w despread support in the
school s anong the enployees who actually have to operate these
progr ans.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he has not heard any conplaints. He
did receive a couple of enmmils from people who were concerned
about increasing costs, but the vast mjority of people have
been very supportive.

8:13:01 AM
SENATOR COLSON asked if studies exist to support the assertion
that school neals inprove performance, increase attendance,

decrease school violence, and decrease child obesity.

MR. ASCOIT said abstracts of nunerous studi es have been included
in the commttee nenbers' hearing packets.

8:13:34 AM

CO CHAIR MEYER asked how children qualify for free and reduced-
price neals.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 17, 2010



8:14:11 AM
MR. ASCOIT said he believes that each school district has its
own application process. He was not sure of the details.

8:14: 45 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said children who fall below 130 percent of
the federal poverty level (FPL) qualify for the free breakfast
and lunch prograns; children at between 130 and 185 percent of
the FPL qualify for reduced-price neals.

8:15:13 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS commented that if 70 percent [75 percent] of
students at a school qualify for free or reduced-price neals,
the school can be classified under Title | to receive special
funding. He asked if the $50 mllion additional funding already
bei ng provided to schools this year in the funding formula wll
cover sone of the program costs w thout burdening the schools.

8:16: 38 AM

EDDY JEANS, Director, Division of School Finance, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, Juneau, Al aska, said every
school that offers a program runs at a deficit. Schools are
currently paying the deficit by transferring noney from their
operating fund; districts transferred $9.1 mllion for that
purpose in 2008. The anobunt varies from district to district
dependi ng upon whether they offer free neals or just reduced-
price neals, and whether they offer a conbined breakfast and
l unch program just breakfast, or just |unch.

He said this piece of Ilegislation puts the program in the
foundation program and he does not think that is the correct
place for it. He offered to work with Senator Welechowski to
identify what section of statute would be nore appropriate.

8:18: 48 AM
SENATOR OLSON asked if private schools would be eligible for
this type of match

MR. JEANS answered this  bill addresses school districts
specifically.

SENATOR OLSON asked if private schools are eligible for federa
funds for neals.

MR JEANS said he believes so.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 17, 2010



SENATOR OLSON asked again if this legislation is only for public
school s.

MR. JEANS answered yes.

8:19: 37 AM
COCHAIR MEYER asked if it is safe to say that the
adm ni stration supports this bill.

MR. JEANS said he did not have clearance from the governor's
office to say the adm nistration supports the bill.

COCHAIR MEYER followed wup on Senator Huggins' guesti on
regarding the additional noney comng to schools through the
foundation forrmula. He asked whether sonme of the costs of neals
will be taken care of by the increase in funding, so the
proposed state matching funds can free up noney to use in the
cl assroons.

MR. JEANS said school districts believe the noney the state is
giving them through the foundation program should stay in
instruction. Districts are currently transferring $9.1 nillion
out of what they would call their instructional budget to
support the food service budget, and this bill would free up a
portion of that noney.

8. 20: 58 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER asked for details on the application process.

MR. JEANS said he thinks famlies have to apply once a year, but
will have to get back to the commttee on that.

8:21:20 AM

SENATOR STEVENS asked if there is a way for kids who are not
from lowincone famlies to buy a breakfast or lunch; he was
concerned about the social stigma that mght attach to kids who
participate in a programfor |owinconme students only.

8.22:12 AM

MR. JEANS said provisions in the Child Nutrition Law require
schools to mask those children who are eligible for the free or
reduced-price neals, and nmany districts that offer breakfast or
lunch programs do acconmpdate students who want to purchase
neal s.

8:23: 03 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 17, 2010



SENATOR HUGA NS said he thinks it would be valuable to know

about the federal progranms as they apply to Title | nutrition
servi ces.
MR. JEANS said Title | schools are identified based on the

percentage of the student population that is |lowinconme. He said
that is what drives eligibility under this programas well.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that some schools have a working
relationship with local charitable organizations to help them
provide food for wunderprivileged students, and encouraged the
|l egislature to Ilook at ways to Ileverage that type of
cooperation. He also questioned how nuch the additional $50
mllion in foundation funding wll inpact the current $9.1
mllion deficit for school neals prograns.

MR. JEANS said he understands Senator Huggins' question about
the additional funds through the foundation program but schoo
districts will argue that the noney is intended for instruction
and not to cover deficits in a federal |unch program

8:25:49 AM
CO CHAI R THOVAS asked how this noney will be tracked.

MR. JEANS replied tracking is one reason he would like to work
with the bill sponsor to identify the proper place in statute
for this program As additional state funding through the
foundati on program the funds would be very hard to track; Food
service Prograns are a special revenue fund and are tracked
separately fromthe general operating fund.

He stressed that the bill as witten will not cover the full
deficit; districts will still have to transfer some noney from
t he school operating fund.

8:27:11 AM

SENATOR OLSON referred to a paragraph in the sponsor statenent
whi ch reads "To conpensate for higher costs, rural schools wll
recei ve additional assistance through a funding formula based on
the applicable School District Cost Factor for each district."
He asked if that means a proportionate anmount of nmoney will go
to rural schools, so they will not be penalized for their |ower
popul ati ons.

MR. JEANS explained the geographic differential is a snall

adjustnment factor intended to help the rural districts offset
addi tional cost such as transportation of goods.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 17, 2010



SENATOR OLSON asked if rural schools wll still have to
subsidize a | arger percentage than the |larger schools wll.

MR. JEANS said he would have to do a |little nore analysis before
he coul d substantiate that statenent.

8:28:31 AM

AMY ROUSE, Director Division of Nutrition Services, Fairbanks
North Star Borough School District and nenber of the Al aska
School Nutrition Association, Fairbanks, Al aska, supported SB
213. She said thirty percent of their students qualify to
receive their nmeals at the free or reduced rate; on average,
they serve 1500 breakfasts and 5000 |unches per day. In the
nmont h of January, they served over 27,000 breakfasts and 92, 000
 unches. Twenty eight percent of the breakfasts and 66 percent
of the lunches were served to students who qualified to receive
neal s at the free or reduced rate.

M5. ROUSE said school neals are nutritionally well-bal anced and
provi de students with a wde variety of fresh produce and whole
grain itenms, which is extrenely inportant to famlies in a
variety of households such as food-poor, mlitary, mgrant,
those who are struggling to nake ends neet, the honeless, and
children in transition.

She said many school districts expect the Nutrition Services
Departnment to generate enough revenue to cover expenses, but
that has becone increasingly difficult; the Fairbanks North Star
School District estimates they wll have a $300,000 shortfal
this year, and the anount of noney available through federal
rei nbursenent and from the price of paid school neals does not
cover the food, non-food supplies, transportation, and | abor
associated with producing them The state matching funds in SB
213 will help them continue to provide the neals that many
chil dren have cone to expect.

8:31: 30 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if M. Rouse said one third of the

students pay their own way, and two thirds qualify for free or
reduced-price neal s.

M5. ROUSE responded two thirds of students pay their own way and
one third do not.

SENATOR STEVENS asked how nmuch students pay for |unch

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- February 17, 2010



M5. ROUSE said students who don't qualify for free or reduced-
price nmeal benefits pay $3 for lunch at the elenmentary school
and $3.25 at the secondary school .

8:32:37 AM

SENATOR HUGEA NS said the mlitary pays Federal Inpact A d Funds
to the school districts and asked if there is a food conponent
to that.

MS. ROUSE answer ed no.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if she knows the amount of those inpact
f unds.

MS. ROUSE did not know.

8:33:11 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS nentioned that another unique funding source is
federal funding for magrant |abor, which applies to sone
categories of fisherman; he asked if that provides nuch to the
school districts.

MS. ROUSE did not know.

8:33:42 AM

M CHAEL SOBOCI NSKI, Psychol ogist, and nenber of the board of
directors for the Food Bank of Alaska, Eagle River, Al aska,
supported SB 213. He spoke to the commttee about children and
the conplexity of issues they face educationally, socially and
enotionally. He said studies have shown the benefit of nutrition
to children's success in school, and he has observed this
personal |y over the years.

8:35:45 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked M. Sobocinski if his experience supports
the link between nutrition and a reduction in violence.

MR. SOBOCINSKI said he is famliar with the research and can say
anecdotal ly that behavior does inprove when children are not
hungry.

SENATOR HUGG NS referred to child obesity and asserted that, if
the state is going to direct noney to the task of feeding
children, it should have nore control over the quality of their
diet. He asked for M. Sobocinski's reconmendati ons.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- February 17, 2010



MR. SOBOCI NSKI answered the quality of the foods that are
of fered makes a big difference.

8:37:56 AM

BRENT ROCK, Director, Student Nutrition, Anchorage Schoo

District, Anchorage, Alaska, said he has noticed a concerted
effort to inprove the student nutrition prograns around the
state, and the Anchorage School District has followed suit. They
worked with the community three years ago to develop a well ness
policy and discovered that, because people in |ow socio-econonic
areas could not afford the healthier foods, they were buying
items high in fats and sugar. The district wanted to reverse
that trend by exanple and by providing healthy foods in the
schools. At the sane tine the district inplenented the well ness
policy, which neant putting nore noney into the student
nutrition program the economc downturn forced the costs of
food and | abor up even higher. They had previously been able to
break even on the costs of running their program but that
changed. For the first tinme in about 15 years, the school board
had to transfer about $1.12 nmillion to help offset the higher
costs.

MR. ROCK stated the percentage of students in the Anchorage
School District who qualify for free or reduced-price neals has
i ncreased over the past two or three years from 25 percent to
about 38 percent of 50,000 students, and the anount they receive
in reinbursement fromthe federal governnment does not come cl ose
to covering those neals. Currently, he said, they do not break
even on any of their neal prograns.

He said a good breakfast nakes a big difference in how kids do
in school. A study done in 1995 with a l|arge population of
students showed definitively that students who eat a good
breakfast are nore alert, perform better academcally, are |less
likely to have to go to the nurse, and have fewer discipline
probl ems in school. A nore recent study upheld these findings.

8:43:19 AM

MR. ROCK said their average cost to produce a lunch is between
$3.95 and $4.18 and they get $3.95 from the federal governnent;
the high volunme of neals they provide is the only reason they
cone close to breaking even. He ended by saying they really want
to provide nore fresh fruits and vegetables, but if they do

that, it wll cost even nore per pupil than they are now
spendi ng.
8:44: 39 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 17, 2010



SENATOR HUGE NS asked if the district buys any of their produce
| ocal ly.

MR. ROCK said they try to buy fromfarners in the Mat Valley but
are bound by state and federal laws to buy at the |owest price,
whi ch generally prevents them from giving a preference to |oca
farnmers.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what is on the nenu today.

MR. ROCK did not know, but said the nenu can be found on the
web.

8.46: 17 AM
CO CHAIR MEYER asked how often people have to go through the
application process.

VR. ROCK replied nost people apply annually, but those
i ndividuals who qualify under direct certification do not have
to apply. Qualified individuals include persons on public
assistance or food stanps, mgrant workers, and honeless
persons. He added that the district has seen a trenendous rise
in their honeless population, which is up to 3000 students
i ncl udi ng pre-school ers.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked if the breakfast programis nore selective.

MR. ROCK said they |ose nore noney on breakfast than |unch
because of the cost of producing it and the fact that they get a
smaller federal reinbursenent for it. The nmaxinmum federa
rei mbursenent for a breakfast program for a severe-needs student
is about $2.85, and very few of their schools qualify for severe
need. He said eleven of their schools qualify for Special
Assi stance (Provision 2 or 3), so the whole school eats free.

CO-CHAIR MEYER clarified that he wanted to know if all of the
students who qualify to eat breakfast at school do so.

MR ROCK said a |ow percentage of them actually do eat
br eakf ast .

CO CHAIR MEYER asked if sone stigna attaches to kids who get
br eakf ast .

MR. ROCK said he does not think so, because they also have

students who buy breakfast. The issue is whether the busses can
get kids to school in tine to eat, and they are working with the

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 17, 2010



superintendant of schools and the transportation department to
make that possible. He said one school allows kids to eat
breakfast in the classroomto ensure they are fed.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked what happens to these kids in the sumer.

8:49: 39 AM

MR. ROCK said they have a summer feeding program They provide
meals not only at the summer schools, but at different venues
around Anchorage and even take a truck to the Lions Park to feed
t he ki ds.

8:50: 01 AM

SUSANNAH MORGAN, Executive Director, Food Bank of Al aska,
Anchorage, Al aska, said the Food Bank of Alaska and the Al aska
Food Coalition recently conducted the 2010 hunger study, which
is part of a national study recognized by the Heritage
Foundation. They found that 74,000 individual Al askans ask for
food assistance at a food pantry, soup kitchen or shelter every
year; of those, 42 percent have children under the age of 18 in
t he househol d.

M5. MORGAN said the Food Bank of Alaska and its 300 partners
around the state do their best to get food assistance to the
famlies who need it, but they estinmate that they need to

distribute 13 mllion pounds of food each year and are only
distributing 6 mllion pounds. They need help, she said, and one
of the best ways to make sure kids aren't going hungry while
they struggle to find that other 7 mllion pounds of food, is to

see that kids have every opportunity to get neals at school.
When the food bank realized 25 percent, or over 100 of Alaska's
schools, do not offer a school breakfast program they saw it as
a nmjor opportunity to feed the Kkids, i nprove school
performance, decrease discipline problens, and decrease obesity
all at the same tinme. She said nearly every state in the union
offers some kind of support for school br eakf ast s, but
acknowl edged that it is not just a state responsibility. She
gave the commttee her assurance that the food bank and its
partners will be there to advocate for increased reinbursenents
from the federal |evel when the Child Nutrition Reauthorization
Act cones before Congress this year.

She said studi es show when kids eat breakfast at school they are
less likely to suffer from obesity, even if they have eaten
breakfast at hone. She explained that the foods provided at
school are generally healthier and are eaten earlier in the day
so they have a chance to netabolize, which neans they are |ikely

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- February 17, 2010



to replace unhealthy foods a child mght eat later in the day.
She said one of the best things the state can do to fight
obesity and hunger is to provide kids with a good breakfast.

M5. MORGAN disclosed that Al aska ranks 49th anpbng states in
provi ding sunmer neals for children; for every 100 kids who get
l unch at school during the school year, only 7 get a neal during
the summer. She said the Food Bank of Alaska is working hard on
t hat and sponsored 32 sumrer food sites |ast year.

8:54: 25 AM

PENNY VADLA, nenber, Kenai Peninsula Borough School District
(KPBSD), Soldotna, Alaska, supported SB 213 and wurged the
| egislature to support funding for school neals. She said 40
percent of the Kenai Borough School District's famlies qualify
for free and reduced neals, and for sone students these are the
only nutritious neals they eat each day. She felt strongly that
money from the foundation forrmula should be used for
i nstructional purposes as intended, and pointed out that this
bill would reinburse the district approximtely $110,000 of the
$300,000 it expects to transfer fromits general funds to food
services this year

She closed by saying that it is inperative that SB 213 pass to
ensure that no child is left hungry.

8:57:26 AM

DEAN HAMBURG, Director, School neal prograns, Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough School District, Soldotna, Al aska, supported SB 213. He
said while the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA)
provides as nuch as $34 nmllion per year to feed Al aska's
children, it is not enough to prevent schools from having to use
cl assroom funds for neal prograns. He enphasized the Kenai wll
provi de over 900,000 school mneals to hungry students this year
and the average of $3.90 per neal in both reinbursenment and cash
is sinmply not enough. Hunger is real for Al aska students, he
said, tw in five students in Alaska qualify for free or
reduced-price neals, and their 200 honeless students depend
al nost solely on those neals.

MR. HAMBURG pointed out the application process is nonitored by
USDA, and reinbursenents through Child Nutrition Services are
also nonitored carefully, so every dollar goes to school
nutrition prograns. He said, although it would be wonderful to

think the volunteer agencies and other entities could fill the
gap, those well-intending groups cannot neet the need of al nost
10 million school neals a year.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- February 17, 2010



The Federal government has been doing all the heavy lifting to
feed Alaska's children, he chided, and it is really tinme for the
state to take sonme responsibility for helping to provide schoo
neal s.

9:01: 14 AM

EDDI E EZELLE, Executive Director, Food Pantry of Wasilla,
Wasilla, Alaska, urged the legislature to support SB 213. He
said the Food Pantry served 3570 clients in January and 1800
during the first half of February, at approximately 1.5 neals
per client. He challenged the Senators to try skipping |unch
today and see if they are able to concentrate on the tasks at
hand.

9:02: 55 AM
ALEX ANNA SALMON, President, Acting Admnistrator, 1giugig
Village Council, 1lgiugig, Alaska, said her village council is

one of the 82 active organizations of the Al aska Food Coalition
and supports SB 213. She said she is the foster nother of two
girls, both of whom suffered food insecurity before comng to
live with her, and between raising the girls and working as an
assistant at the school, she has seen the direct |ink between
improved nutrition and the quality of education. She said she
was in school when they inplenented the first |unch program and
knows first-hand what a difference it makes. She expressed hope
that the additional noney wll nake it possible for them to
start a breakfast programas well.

9: 05: 44 AM

JORDIS CLARK, School Nurse, Anchorage School District, and
Secretary for the Board of Directors of the Food Bank of Al aska,
supported SB 213. She said she holds an advanced degree in
public health and collected data for the WlIlness Policy
Comm ttee hunger study that Susannah Morgan nentioned. In answer
to Senator Huggins' question about today's nenu, she said the
el enentary schools are offering whole-grain Belgian waffles or
cereal, unsweetened appl esauce, and a half pint of nonfat mlKk.
She also responded to Senator Meyer's concern about children
being identified as recipients of free or reduced neals, saying
the data is so carefully guarded that even the enployee
responsi ble for preparing and serving those neals does not know.

9:09: 20 AM

J. PATRICK LUBY, Advocacy Director, AARP, Al aska State Ofice
Anchorage, Al aska, said AARP nay seem to be the odd fellow at
the table, but their nenbers are grandparents, and they are

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- February 17, 2010



concerned about their grandchildren. Over 8000 children are
being raised by over 5400 grandparents in Al aska, he said, and
11.5 percent of them live below the federal poverty level. He
said these people are living on the edge and need all the help
the state can give them providing breakfast and lunch for their
grandchildren at school will help the students succeed and help
the grandparents continue to raise these kids. He urged the
| egi sl ature to support SB 213.

9:10: 38 AM

HEATHER HARRIS, BHS, Program Mnager, The Alaska Youth and
Parent Foundation (AYPF), and incomng President of The Al aska
Food Coalition, supported SB 213. At AYPF, she said, she works
with at-risk and honeless youth through their office at the
dowmntown transit center where they provide snacks and drinks,
but not a conplete neal. After visiting their center and raiding
the refrigerator, clients have often said that was the only food
they had eaten all day. The 2010 hunger study done by the Al aska
Food Coalition and the Food Bank of Al aska revealed that 40
percent of famlies with children younger than 18 years old
ski pped neals in the |ast year, because they did not have enough
noney for food. She said a |l ack of adequate nutrition can affect
the cognitive behavioral developnent of children, and food
i nsecurity has been associ at ed W th gr ade repetition,
absenteei sm tardiness, anxiety, aggression, poor mathematics
skills, psycho-social dysfunction, and difficulty wth social
i nteractions.

9:12: 21 AM

MARY  FRANCI S, Executive Director, School Adm ni strators
Associ ation, supported SB 213. She said she has not received any
i nput yet from the school superintendants, but will be happy to
get that for the commttee.

9:13:47 AM
COCHAIR MEYER closed public testinony and held SB 213 in
conmittee.

9:14: 23 AM

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Co- Chair Thomas adjourned the neeting at 9:14 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -16- February 17, 2010



